IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

THOMAS E. PEREZ, SECRETARY OF LABOR, :
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR,

Plaintiff,

v. : Civil Action No.
EL RODEO - ELECTRIC, INC,,
EL RODEO ORANGE INC.,
EL RODEO - WILDWOOD INC.,
ARELLANO INC. (EL TOREOQ),
BRAVO BRANDON INC. (EL. TOREO),
EL TOREO — THIRLANE INC., :
ELIITO ARELLANQO, individually
JESUS ARELLANO, individually
and AUGUSTIN ARELLANO, individually

Defendants.

COMPLAINT
Plaintiff, Thomas E. Perez, Secretary of Labor, United States Department of Labor
(“Plaintiff”), brings this action to enjoin El Rodeo — Electric, Inc., El Rodeo Orange Inc., El
Rodeo Wildwood Inc., Arel_lano Inc. - El Toreo, Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo, El Toreo

Thirlane Inc., Elijio Arellano, individually, Jesus Arellano, individually and Augustin Arellano,

individually (“Defendants™) from violating the provisions of Sections 6, 7, 11(c), 15(a)(2) and
15(a)}(5) of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.),
hereinafter referred to as “the Act,” and for a judgment against Defendants in the total amount of
back wage compensation found by the Court to be due to any of the former or current employees
of Defendants pursuant to the Act and for liquidated damages in an amount equal fo the back

wages found due to the employees.



L

Jurisdiction of this action is conferred upon the Court by Sections 16(c) and 17 of the
Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 216(c) and 217, and by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1345.

1L

Defendant El Rodeo — Electric, Inc. (“Electric, Inc.”) is, and at all times hereinafter
mentioned was, a corporation with a place of business at 3280 Electric Road, Roanoke, VA
24018, which is within the venue and jﬁrisdiction of this Court.

1.

Defendant El Rodeo — Orange, Inc. (“Orange, Inc.”) is, and at all times hereinafter
mentioned was, a corporation with a place of business at 3518 Orange Avenue, NE, Roanoke,
VA 24012, which is within the venue and jurisdiction of this Court.

Iv.

Defendant El Rodeo — Wildwood, Inc. (“Wildwood, Inc.”) is, and at all times hereinafter
mentioned was, a corporaﬁon with a place of business at 260 Wildwood Rd, Salem, VA 24153,
which is within the venue and jurisdiction of this Court.

V.

Defendant Arellano Inc. - El Toreo, (‘.‘Arellano, Inc.”) is, and at all times hereinafter
mentioned was, a corporation with a place of business at 3133 Franklin Road, SW, Roanoke, VA
24014, which is within the VGHUIC and jurisdiction of ‘this Court.

VL



Defendant Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo, (“Bravo Brandon, Inc.”) is, and at all times
hereinafter mentioned was, a corporation with a place of business at 3790 Peters Creek Rbad,
Roanoke, VA 24018, which is within the venue and jurisdiction of this Court.

VIL

Defendant El Toreo - Thirlane Inc., (“Thirlane, In¢.”) is, and at all times hereinafter
mentioned was, a corporation with a place of business at 6617 Thirlane Rd, Roanoke, VA 24019,
which is within the venue and jurisdiction of this Céurt.

VIIL

Defendant Elijio Arellano (“Elijio Arellano™) is, and at all times hereinafter mentioned
was, an owner of Defendants El Rodeo — Electric, [nc., El Rodeo Orange Inc., Arellano Inc. - El
Tored, Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo, and El Toreo Thirlane Inc.. Defendant Elijio Arellano
does, and at all times hereinafter mentioned did, business in Virginia as he owns and operates El
Rodeo — Electric, Inc. at 3280 Electric Road, Roanoke, VA '24018, El Rodeo Orange Inc. at 3518
Orange Avenue, NE, Roanoke, VA 24012, Arellano Inc. - El Toreo at 3133 Franklin Road, SW,
Roanoke, VA 24014, Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo at 3790 Peters Creek Road, Roanoke, VA
24018, and El Toreo - Thirlane Inc. at 6617 Thirlane Rd, Roanoke, VA 24019, which are each
within the venue and jurisdiction of tﬁis Court |

IX.

Defendant Jesus Arellano (*Jesus Arellano™) is, and at all times hereinafter ﬁentioned
was, an owner of Defendants El Rodeo — Electric, Inc. E! Rodeo Orange Inc., El Rodeo
Wildwood Inc., Arellano Inc. - El Toreo, Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo, and El Toreo Thirlane
Inc.. Defendant Jesus Arellano does, and at all times hereinafter mentioned did, business in

Virginia as he owns and operates El Rodeo — Electric, Inc. at 3280 Electric Road, Roanoke, VA




24018, El Rodeo Orange Inc. at 3518 Orange Avenue, NE, Roanoke, VA 24012, El Rodeo
Wildwood Ine. at 260 Wildwood Rd, Salem, VA 24153, Arellano Inc. - El Toreo at 3790 Peters
Creek Road, Roanoke, VA 24018, Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo at 3790 Peters Creek Road,
Roanoke, VA 24018, and El Toreo Thirlane Inc. at 6617 Thirlane Rd, Roanoke, VA 24019,
which are each within the venue and jurisdiction of this Court.

1L

Defendant Augustin Arellano (“Augustin Arellano™) is, and at all times hereinafter
mentioned was, an owner of Defendants El Rodeo — Electric, Inc., El Rodeo Wildwood Inc.,
Arellano Inc. - El Toreo, Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo, and El Toreo Thirlane Inc. Defendant

- Augustin Arellano. does, and at all times hereinafter mcntioned did, business in Virginia aé he
owns and operates El Rodeo — Electric, Inc. at 3280 Electric Road, Roanoke, VA 24018, El
Rodeo Wildwood Inc. at 260 Wildwood Rd, Salem, VA 24153, Arellano Inc. - El Toreo at 3790
Peters Creek Road, Roanoke, VA 24018, Bravo Brandon Inc. - El Toreo at 3790 Peters Creek
Road, Roanoke, VA 24018, and El Toreo Thirlane Inc. at 6617 Thirlane Rd, Roanoke, VA
24019, which are each within the venue and jurisdiction of this Court.

V.

The business activities of the Defendants, as described herein, were and are related and
performed through unified operation or common control for a common business purpose and
constitute an enterprise within the meaning of Section 3(r) of the Act; in that:

1. The corporate business defendants identified herein all own and operate restuarants;

2. The corporate business defendants identified herein all shared management and

ownership responsibilities, including the purchasing of goods and materials and

advertising to the .public;



3._ The individual defendants are members of the same family, and they operated thé
corporated defendants as a central and coordinated effort;

4, The individual defendants actively cooperated among themselves in the ownership,
operation, and day-to-day activities of the corporate restaurant businesses;

5. 'The indvidiual defendants and corporate defendants shared ownership and

management responsibilities among the various corporate defendants.

VL
At all times hereinafter mentioned, Defendants had employees engaged in commerce or
in the production of goods for commerce, including employees handling, selling, or otherwise
working on goods or materials that have beer} moved in or produced for commerce by any
person, such as poultry and food goods that have travelled across state lines. Further, at all times
heréinafter mentioned, Defendants’ enterprise (as defined in Paragraph V, above) had an annual
gross volume sales made or business done of ﬁot less than $500,000, thereby affording coverage
over all their employees pursuant to Section 3(s)(1)(A) of the Act.
VIL
Defendants have willfully violated the provisions of Sections 6 and 15(a)(2) of the Act by
failing to pay certain employees for their employment in commerce or in the production of goods
for commerce within the meaning of the Act, wages at rates less than the statutory minimum
wage ($7.25 an hour) during the period since January 29, 2012,
VI
The willful minimum wage violations by Defendants resulted from, but are not limited to,

the following practices:



a. Defendants’ servers were improperly compensated as “tipped employees” when the
servers were not compensated a cash wage of at least $2.13 per hour since January
29, 2012,

b. The Defendants failed to provide oral or written notification in advance to the servers
that a tip credit would be taken and the applicable provisions of section 3.(m) of the |
Act.

c. The only compensation paid to servers for hours worked originated from cash and
credit card tips earned on a daily and weekly basis.

d. ‘When Defendants began compensating employees via payroll check in June 2014,
servers continued to only receive compensation in the form of tips, as all monies paid
to servers via payrolf check were subject to employer illegal payroll deductions
negating payment to the servers.

IX.

Defendants have willfully violated the provisions of Sections 7 and 15(a)(2) of the Act by
failing to adequately compensate certain employees for their employment in commerce or in the
pfoduction of goods for commerce within the meaning of the Act, for hours worked longer than
40 hours per week at rates not less than one and a half-times their hourly rate during the period
since January 29, 2012 .

X.

The willful OQertime wage violations by Defendants resulted from, but are not limited to,
the following practices:

a. The kitchen staff (cooks, assistant cooks and dishwashers) were paid on a weekly pay

period basis and paid straight time for hours worked over 40 in a workweek. The non-



exempt salaried employees are due the additional half time for hours worked over 40 in a
work week. The amount of weekly overtime payment owed to each individual varies
depending on the number of hours the employee a.ctu.aily worked.

b. The servers (tipped employees) were not paid any form of overtime compensation, as
their compensation came strictly from the tips they earned on a daily and wéekly basis.
Therefore, the servers are due time and one half the regular rate of pay for all hours
worked over 40 in a work week. The amount of weekly overtime payments owed to each
employee varied on the number of hours they worked from workweek to workweek.

XL
Defendants exercised control over the employees’ worl, including but not limited to,
giving assignments to employees, scheduling employees, supervising employees and
determining their hourly rate of pay. The services provided by the employees were integral to
the Defendants’ restaurant businesses.
X1
Defendants have violated the provisions of Sections 11(c) and 15(a)}(5) of the Act by
faiiing to make, keep and preser\}e adequate and accurate records of many of their employees of
the wages, hours and other conditions of their employment, as prescribed by the regulations
issuéd and found at 29 C.F.R. Part 5 1.6, in that, among other things: Actual tips received by
employees were not recorded. |
X111
As a result of the violations alleged in ?aragraphs VII through VIII above, amounts are

owing for hours worked that were paid at rates less than the rates set forth in Section 6 of the Act



during the period since January 29, 2012for certain present and former employees, including the
persons specifically named in
Schedule A attached to Plaintiff’s Complaint.

XIV.

As a result of the violations alleged in paragraphs [X through X above, amounts are
owing for hours worked that were longer thén 40 hours per week at rates not less than one and a
half-times their hourly rate as set forth in Section 7 of the Act during the period since January 29,
2012 for certain present and former employees, including the persons speoliﬁcally named in
Schedule A attached to Plaintiff’s Complaint.

XV.

Defendants have repeatedly and willfully violated the provisions of the Act as alleged in
paragraphs VII through XII above. A judgment permanently enjoining and restraining the
violations herein alleged (including the restraining of withholding of minimum wage back
wages) is specifically authorized by Section 17 of the Act, 29 U.S.C. § 217,

XVIL

A judgment granting recovery of said amounts referred to in Paragraph XIV, together
with an equal additiénal amount as liquidated damages, is specifically authorized by Section
16{c) of the Act.

WHEREFORE, cause having been shown, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the
Defendants as follows:

1. For an Order pursuant to Section 17 of the Act permanently enjoining and

restraining Defendants, as well as Defendants’ officers, agents, servants, employees, and those



persons in active concert or participation with Defendants who receive actual notice of any such
judgment, from violating Sections 6, 7, 11(c), 15(a}(2) and 15(a)(5) of the Act;
2. For an Order pursuant to Section 16(c) of the Act finding Defendants liable for

unpaid minimum wage back wages and overtime compensation due Defendants” employees and

for liquidated damages equal in amount to the unpaid compensation found due Defendants’
employees listed in the attached Exhibit A (additional minimum wage back wages and overtime
éompensation and/or liquidated damages may be owed, for the period covered by this Complaint,
to certain present and former employees who were or are employed by Defendants at the
restaurants in Roanoke or Salem, Virginia and who are presently unknown to Plaintiff);

3. In the event liquidated damages are not awarded under Section 16(c) of the Act,
for an Order pursuant to Section 17 of the Act enjoining and restraining Defendants and
Defendants’ officers, agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or
participation with Defendants, from withholding payment of minimum wage back wages or
overpayment compensation found due Defendants’ employees and pre-judgment interest
computed at the underpayment rate established by the Secretary_of the Treasury pursuant to 26
U.S.C. § 6621,

4. For an Order granting such other and further relief as may be necessary and

appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

M. Patricia Smith
Solcitor of Labor

Oscar L. Hampton 111
Regional Solicitor



Douglas N. White
Associate Regional Solicitor

Francine A. Serafin
Regional Counsel

BY: Domir{ique V. Sinest
Attorney

VA Bar No. 28707

U.S. Department of Labor
Office of the Regional Solicitor
201 12" Street South

Suite 401

Arlington, VA 22202

(202) 693-9337
sinesi.dominique(@dol.gov

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
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